Services Acquisition Corp. International Form 10-Q/A August 03, 2006 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q/A

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 001-32552

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP.

INTERNATIONAL

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)
401 East Olas Boulevard, Suite 1140
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
(Address of principal executive offices)

20-2122262 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

33301 (Zip Code)

(954) 713-1165

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No

Indicated by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No

As of November 13, 2005, 21,000,000 shares of the registrant's common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, were outstanding.

Table of Contents

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL Table of Contents

Explanatory Note:

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A is being filed as Amendment Number 1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q which was originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on November 15, 2005. We are filing this form 10-Q/A to restate our financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and period from inception to September 30, 2005 to reflect additional non-operating gains and losses related to the classification of and accounting for: (1) the warrants to purchase common stock associated with the units sold at the initial public offering of the Company and (2) warrants to purchase common stock embedded in a option to purchase units consisting of one share and one warrant to purchase one additional share, issued to Broadband Capital in connection with the initial public offering. The Company had previously classified the value of these warrants to purchase common stock, when applicable, as equity. After further review, the Company has determined that these instruments should have been classified as derivative liabilities and therefore, the fair value of each instrument must be recorded as a derivative liability on the Company's balance sheet. Changes in the fair values of these instruments will result in adjustments to the amount of the recorded derivative liabilities and the corresponding gain or loss will be recorded in the Company's statement of operations. Except as otherwise stated, all financial information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q gives effect to these restatements. For information concerning the background of the restatements, the specific adjustments made, and management's discussion and analysis of our results of operations for 2005 giving effect to the restated information, see "Restatement of 2005 Financial Statements" at Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and Note 3 to our Financial Statements.

This Form 10-Q/A amends and restates only certain information in the following sections as a result of the current restatements described above:

Part I – Item 1. Financial Statements

Part I – Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Part I – Item 4. Controls and Procedures

In addition, we are also including currently dated Sarbanes Oxley Act Section 302 and Section 906 certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer that are attached to this Form 10-Q/A as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, and 32.1.

For the convenience of the reader, this Form 10-Q/A sets forth the entire Form 10-Q which was prepared and relates to the Company as of September 30, 2005. However, this Form 10-Q/A only amends and restates the Items described above to reflect the effects of the restatement and no attempt has been made to modify or update other disclosures presented in our September 30, 2005 Form 10-Q. Accordingly, except for the foregoing amended information, this Form 10-Q/A continues to speak as of November 15, 2005 (the original filing date of the September 30, 2005 Form 10-Q), and does not reflect events occurring after the filing of our September 30, 2005 Form 10-Q and does not modify or update those disclosures affected by subsequent events. Forward looking statements made in the 2005 Form 10-Q have not been revised to reflect events, results or developments that have become known to us after the date of the original filing (other than the current restatements described above), and such forward looking statements should be read in their historical context. Unless otherwise stated, the information in this Form 10-Q/A not affected by such

current restatements is unchanged and reflects the disclosures made at the time of the original filing.

	Page
PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION	2
Item 1. Financial Statements	
Balance Sheets	<u>F-1</u>
Statements of Operations	<u>F-2</u>
Statement of Stockholders' Equity	<u>F-3</u>
Statement of Cash Flows	<u>F-4</u>
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>F-5</u>
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and	
Results of Operations	<u>2</u>
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	<u>5</u>
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	<u>5</u>
PART II — OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	<u>6</u>
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>6</u>
Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities	<u>6</u>
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	<u>6</u>
Item 5. Other Information	<u>6</u>
Item 6. Exhibits	<u>6</u>
SIGNATURES	
1	

Table of Contents

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Reference is made to our financial statements beginning on page F-1 of this report.

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL

(a corporation in the development stage)

BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2005, As Restated

ASSETS

Current assets	
Cash	\$ 1,113,757
Cash held in trust	127,334,883
Prepaid expenses	86,866
Total current assets	\$128,535,506
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY	
Current liabilities	
Accrued expenses	\$ 109,325
Derivative liabilities	16,093,315
Total current liabilities	16,202,640
Common stock, subject to possible redemption, 3,448,275	
shares at redemption value	25,241,373
Stockholders' equity	
Preferred stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued	
Common stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 70,000,000 shares; issued and	
outstanding 21,000,000 shares (which includes the 3,448,275 shares subject to	
possible redemption)	21,000
Paid-in capital in excess of par	86,493,384
Equity accumulated during the development stage	577,109
Total stockholders' equity	87,091,493
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$128,535,506
Saa accompanying notes to financial statements	

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F-1

Table of Contents

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL

(a corporation in the development stage)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS, As Restated

	Three Months	For the Period January		
	Ended	6,		
	September 30,	2005 (inception) to		
	2005	September 30, 2005		
Interest income	\$ 614,883	\$ 614,883		
Gain from derivative liabilities	18,408	18,408		
Formation and operating costs	53,951	54,917		
Interest expense	162	1,265		
Net income	\$ 579,178	\$ 577,109		
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic	20,038,043	9,883,134		

Diluted	22,287,259	1	10,575,352
Net income per share, basic	\$ 0.03	\$	0.06
Net income per share, diluted	\$ 0.03	\$	0.05

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F-2

Table of Contents

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL

(a corporation in the development stage)

STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For period from January 6, 2005 (inception) to September 30, 2005, As Restated

	Common Stock Shares	Amount	Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par	Equity Accumulated During the Development Stage	Stockholders Equity
Balance January 6, 2005 (inception)		\$	- \$ —	\$ —	\$
Common shares issued Sale of 15,000,000 shares, net of underwriters' discount and offering expenses (including 2,998,500 shares subject to	3,750,000	3,750	25,429	у —	29,179
possible redemption) Sale of 2,250,000 shares through the over-allotment option offering, net of underwriters' discount (including 449,775 shares subject to possible	15,000,000	15,000	110,903,201		110,918,201
redemption) Reclassification of part of proceeds from sale of shares to	2,250,000	2,250	16,917,750		16,920,000
derivative liabilities (warrants)			(16,111,723)		(16,111,723)
Proceeds subject to possible redemption (3,448,275 shares) Proceeds from issuance of option Net income Balances, at September 30, 2005	21,000,000	\$21,000	(25,241,373) 100 \$ 86,493,384	577,109 \$577,109	(25,241,373) 100 577,109 \$ 87,091,493

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F-3

Table of Contents

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL

(a corporation in the development stage)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For period from January 6, 2005 (inception) to September 30, 2005, As Restated

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income	\$	577,109
Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to change in:		
Derivative liabilities		(18,408)
Prepaid expenses		(86,866)
Accrued expenses		109,325
Net cash provided by operating activities		581,160
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from sale of stock		29,179
Gross proceeds of public offering	1	20,000,000
Payments of costs of public offering		(9,081,799)
Gross proceeds of over-allotment option offering		18,000,000
Payments of costs of over-allotment option offering		(1,080,000)
Proceeds from issuance of option		100
Net cash provided by financing activities	1	27,867,480
Net cash used in investing activity, cash held in trust	(1	27,334,883)
Net increase in cash		1,113,757
Cash, beginning of period		
Cash, end of period	\$	1,113,757

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F-4

Table of Contents

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of operations and summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of Operations

Services Acquisition Corp. International (the "Company") was incorporated in Delaware on January 6, 2005 as a blank check company whose objective is to acquire through a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition or other similar business combination with a currently unidentified operating business. The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year-end.

The registration statement for the Company's initial public offering (the "Offering") was declared effective June 29, 2005. The Company consummated the offering on July 6, 2005 and received net proceeds of approximately \$110,918,000 and executed the over-allotment option offering on July 7, 2005 and received net proceeds of approximately \$16,920,000. The Company's management has broad discretion with respect to the specific application of the net proceeds of this Offering, although substantially all of the net proceeds of this Offering are intended to be generally applied toward consummating a business combination with an operating company. As used herein, a "target business" shall include an operating business that provides services and a "business combination" shall mean the acquisition by the Company of such a target business.

The Company's efforts in identifying a prospective business target will not be limited to a particular industry, although management intends to focus on high margin service businesses with recurring revenue. The success and ongoing profitability of such business will not necessarily be predicated on continually generating new revenue, but rather on forging a valued bond for which switching costs may be high or alternatives of lower value. Within this context, the Company expects to seek companies displaying a number of characteristics: recurring revenues, focus on a service rather than a product, high gross margins, stable cash flow and opportunities for organic and acquisition growth.

Upon the closing of the Company's offering, an amount of \$126,720,000 was placed in a trust account at JP Morgan Chase NY Bank maintained by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company to be invested until the earlier of (i) the consummation of the Company's first business combination or (ii) the liquidation of the Company; as of September 30, 2005 the balance in the trust account is \$127,334,883. The remaining proceeds are available to the Company to pay for business, legal and accounting due diligence on prospective acquisitions and continuing general and administrative expenses.

The Company, after signing a definitive agreement for the acquisition of a target business, will submit such transaction for stockholder approval. In the event that stockholders owning 20% or more of the outstanding stock excluding, for this purpose, those persons who were stockholders prior to the Offering, vote against the business combination, the business combination will not be consummated. All of the Company's stockholders prior to the Offering, including all of the officers and directors of the Company ("Initial Stockholders"), have agreed to vote their 3,750,000 founding shares of common stock in accordance with the vote of the majority in interest of all other stockholders of the Company ("Public Stockholders") with respect to any business combination. After consummation of the Company's first business combination, all of these voting safeguards will no longer be applicable.

With respect to the first business combination, which is approved and consummated, any Public Stockholder who voted against the business combination may demand that the Company redeem his or her shares. The per share redemption price will equal the amount in the Trust Fund as of the record date for determination of stockholders entitled to vote on the business combination divided by the number of shares of common stock held by Public Stockholders at the consummation of the Offering. Accordingly, Public Stockholders holding 19.99% of the aggregate number of shares owned by all Public Stockholders may seek redemption of their shares in the event of a business combination. Such Public Stockholders are entitled to receive their per share interest in the Trust Fund computed without regard to the shares held by Initial Stockholders.

Table of Contents

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation provides for mandatory liquidation of the Company, without stockholder approval, in the event that the Company does not consummate a business combination within 18 months from the date of the consummation of the Offering, or 24 months from the consummation of the Offering if certain extension criteria have been satisfied. In the event of liquidation, it is likely that the per share value of the residual assets remaining available for distribution (including Trust Fund assets) will be less than the offering price per share in the Offering (assuming no value is attributed to the Warrants contained in the Units to be offered in the Offering discussed in Note 2.)

Accounting for Warrants and Derivative Instruments

On July 6, 2005, the Company consummated its initial public offering of 15,000,000 units. On July 7, 2005, the Company consummated the closing of an additional 2,250,000 units that were subject to the underwriters' over-allotment option. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one redeemable common stock purchase warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase from the Company one share of its common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00.

The Company sold to the representative of the underwriter, for \$100, an option to purchase up to a total of 750,000 units. The units issuable upon exercise of this option are identical to those sold in the initial public offering, except that the warrants included in the option have an exercise price of \$7.50 (125% of the exercise price of the warrants included in the units sold in the offering). This option is exercisable at \$10.00 per unit commencing on the later of the consummation of a business combination and June 27, 2006 and expires on June 27, 2010.

In September 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF 00-19, "Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock," ("EITF 00-19") which requires freestanding contracts that are settled in a company's own stock, including common stock warrants, to be designated as an equity instrument, asset or a liability. Under the provisions of EITF 00-19, a contract designated as an asset or a liability must be carried at fair value on a company's balance sheet, with any changes in fair value recorded in the company's results of operations. A contract designated as an equity instrument must be included within equity, and no fair value adjustments are required from period to period. In accordance with EITF 00-19, the 17,250,000 warrants issued to purchase common stock are separately accounted for as liabilities. The fair value of these warrants is shown on the Company's balance sheet and the unrealized changes in the values of these derivatives are shown in the Company's consolidated statement of operations as "Gain (loss) on derivative liabilities." These warrants are freely traded on the American Stock Exchange, consequently the fair value of these warrants are estimated as the market price of a warrant at each period end. To the extent that the market price increases or decreases, the Company's derivative liabilities will also increase or decrease, including the effect on the Company's consolidated statement of operations.

Fair values for exchange-traded securities and derivatives are based on quoted market prices. Where market prices are not readily available, fair values are determined using market based pricing models incorporating readily observable market data and requiring judgment and estimates. The purchase option to purchase 750,000 shares is considered an equity instrument, as the underlying shares do not need to be registered, and all other criteria to be accounted for as an equity instrument have been fulfilled. The embedded derivative, the warrant to purchase 750.000 shares for \$7.50 each, follow the same accounting guidelines as the 17,250,000 warrants discussed previously and is considered a liability.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended, requires all derivatives to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Furthermore,

paragraph 11(a) of SFAS No. 133 precludes contracts issued or held by a reporting entity that are both (1) indexed to its own stock and (2) classified as stockholders' equity in its statement of financial position from being treated as derivative instruments. We have determined that the option to purchase 750,000 units, each unit consisting of one warrant and one share of common stock, is a derivative that also contains an embedded derivative. The option to purchase 750,000 shares of common stock and the warrant to purchase an additional 750,000 shares,

F-6

Table of Contents

the latter being the embedded derivative, are separately valued and accounted for on the Company's balance sheet. While the warrant to purchase the additional 750,000 shares is indexed to the Company's common stock, the fact that the shares underlying the warrants require future registration in accordance with the warrant agreement, requires the Company to classify these instruments as a liability in accordance with EITF 00-19, paragraph 14.

As such, the option to purchase 750,000 units is considered an equity instrument, as the underlying shares do not need to be registered, and all other criteria in EITF 00-19 required for the instrument to be accounted for as an equity instrument have been fulfilled. The embedded derivative which is the warrant to purchase 750,000 shares for \$7.50 each, follows the same accounting guidelines as the 17,250,000 warrants disclosed in our 10-K/A and is considered a liability. These derivative liabilities have been, and will continue to be adjusted to fair value in our quarterly filings.

The Company performed a valuation of the option to purchase 750,000 units, and then allocated its fair value to its two components, the underlying 750,000 shares and the embedded warrant to purchase additional 750,000 shares. The fair value at inception was calculated to be \$894,909, or \$1.19 per unit, of which \$653,186 was allocated to the purchase option of 750,000 shares and \$241,723 was allocated to the warrants to purchase an additional 750,000 shares, according to their respective fair values.

The pricing model the Company uses for determining fair values of the purchase option and the embedded derivative is the Black Scholes Pricing Model. Valuations derived from this model are subject to ongoing internal and external verification and review. The model uses market-sourced inputs such as interest rates, market prices and volatilities. Selection of these inputs involves management's judgment and may impact net income.

In particular, the Company uses volatility rates based upon a sample of comparable companies in its industry, special purpose acquisition corporations. At the time a company to be acquired has been identified and agreements to acquire are in place, the volatility rates will be based on comparable companies to the acquired company. The Company uses a risk-free interest rate, which is the rate on US Treasury instruments, for a security with a maturity that approximates the estimated remaining contractual life of the derivative. The volatility factor used in Black Scholes has a significant effect on the resulting valuation of the derivative liabilities on the Company's balance sheet. The volatility for the calculation of the embedded derivatives was approximated at 41.4%, this volatility-rate will likely change in the future. The Company uses the closing market price of the Company's common stock at the end of a quarter when a derivative is valued at fair value. The Company's stock price will also change in the future. To the extent that the Company's stock price increases or decreases, the Company's derivative liabilities will also increase or decrease, absent any change in volatility rates and risk-free interest rates.

Income Per Common Share

Income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company complies with SFAS 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which requires an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed for differences between the financial statement and tax basis of

F-7

Table of Contents

assets and liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

2. Initial Public Offering

On July 6, 2005, the Company sold 15,000,000 units ("Units") in the Offering. An additional 2,250,000 Units were issued on July 7, 2005 to cover the over-allotment granted to the underwriters. Each Unit consists of one share of the Company's common stock, \$.001 par value, and one Redeemable Common Stock Purchase Warrant ("Warrant"). Each Warrant entitles the holder to purchase from the Company one share of common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00 commencing the later of the completion of a business combination with a target business or one year from the effective date of the Offering and expiring five years from the date of the prospectus. The Warrants will be redeemable at a price of \$.01 per Warrant upon 30 days notice after the Warrants become exercisable, only in the event that the last sale price of the common stock is at least \$11.50 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period ending on the third day prior to date on which notice of redemption is given.

3. Restatement of previously issued financial statements

In August, 2006, the Company concluded that it was necessary to restate its financial results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 and for the interim periods ended September 30, 2005 to reflect additional non-operating gains and losses related to the classification of and accounting for: (1) the warrants to purchase common stock associated with the units sold at the initial public offering of the Company and (2) warrants to purchase common stock embedded in a option to purchase units consisting of one share and one warrant to purchase one additional share, issued to Broadband Capital in connection with the initial public offering. The Company had previously classified the value of these warrants to purchase common stock, when applicable, as equity. After further review, the Company has determined that these instruments should have been classified as derivative liabilities and therefore, the fair value of each instrument must be recorded as a derivative liability on the Company's balance sheet. Changes in the fair values of these instruments will result in adjustments to the amount of the recorded derivative liabilities and the corresponding gain or loss will be recorded in the Company's statement of operations. At the date of the conversion of each respective instrument or portion thereof (or exercise of the options or warrants or portion thereof, as the case may be), the corresponding derivative liability will be reclassified as equity.

The accompanying financial statements for the three months ended September 30, 2005 and the period from inception to September 30, 2005 have been restated to effect the changes described above. The impact of the adjustments related to the classification of and accounting for the warrants for the period from inception to September 30, 2005 and for the three months ended September 30, 2005 are summarized below:

F-8

Table of Contents

Statement of Operations

	As				
Pı	reviously				
F	Reported	Ad	justment	A	s Restated
\$	614,883	\$	_	\$	614,883
			18,408		18,408
	54,917				54,917
	1,265				1,265
\$	558 701	\$	(18.408)	\$	557 109

For the Period January 6, 2005 (inception) to September 30, 2005

Interest income
Gain from derivative liabilities
Formation and operating cost
Interest expense
Net income (loss)
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

For the three months ended September 30, 3005

692,218

(0.01)

- \$

0.06

0.05

9,883,134

10,575,352

	As	Previously				
	F	Reported	Ad	justment	As	Restated
Interest income	\$	614,883	\$	_	\$	614,883
Gain from derivative liabilities				18,408		18,408
Formation and operating cost		53,951				53,951
Net income	\$	579,178	\$	(18,408)	\$	579,178
Basic earnings per share	\$	0.03	\$	_	\$	0.03
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.03	\$	_	\$	0.03
Basic weighted average shares outstanding	20	0,038,043		_	2	0,038,063
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	2	0,038,043	2,	249,216	2	2,287,259

\$

\$

0.06

0.06

9,883,134

9,883,134

F-9

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet Impact

The following table sets forth the effects of the restatement adjustments on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2005:

	September 30, 2005 As Previously	September 30, 2005
	Reported	Adjustment (As Restated)
ASSETS		
Current assets		
Cash	\$ 1,113,757	\$ -\$ 1,113,757
Cash held in trust	127,334,883	127,334,883
Total current assets	\$128,535,506	\$ —\$128,535,506
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accrued expenses	\$ 109,325	\$ —\$ 109,325
Derivative liabilities		16,093,315 16,093,315
Total current liabilities	109,325	16,093,315 16,202,640
Common stock, subject to possible redemption, 3,448,275		
shares at redemption value	25,241,373	25,241,373
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT		
Preferred stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 1,000,000,		
none issued		
Common stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 70,000,000		
shares; issued and outstanding 21,000,000 shares (which		
includes the 3,448,275 shares subject to possible		
redemption)	21,000	21,000
Additional paid in capital	102,605,107	(16,111,723) 86,493,384
Equity accumulated during the development stage	558,701	18,408 577,109
Total stockholders' equity	103,184,808	(16,093,315) 87,091,493
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$128,535,506	\$ —\$128,535,506

4. Commitments and contingencies

The Company has agreed to pay up to \$7,500 a month in total for office space and general and administrative expense to a related entity and two stockholders. Upon completion of a business combination or liquidation, the Company will no longer be required to pay these monthly fees. The monthly fee has started on July 6, 2005.

As part of the Offering, certain stockholders agreed that after the Offering was completed and within the first twenty trading days after separate trading of the warrants has commenced, they or certain of their affiliates or designees would collectively purchase up to 1,000,000 warrants in the public marketplace at prices not to exceed \$1.20 per warrant. They further agreed that any warrants purchased by them or their affiliates or designees will not be sold or transferred until the completion of a business combination. In addition, subject to any regulatory restrictions and subsequent to the completion of the purchase of the 1,000,000 warrants described above and within the first twenty trading days after separate trading of the warrants has commenced, the representative of the underwriter, or certain of its principals, affiliates or designees has to purchase up to 500,000 warrants in the public marketplace at prices not to exceed \$1.20 per warrant. The Units separated on July 28, 2005; as per the preceding sentence, management purchased 1,000,000 warrants at an average price of \$1.01375 and the underwriter or its affiliated purchased 500,000

warrants at an average price of \$0.99.

F-10

Table of Contents

The Company has sold to the representative of the underwriter, for \$100, an option to purchase up to a total of 750,000 units. The units issuable upon exercise of this option are identical to those offered by this prospectus except that the warrants included in the option have an exercise price of \$7.50 (125% of the exercise price of the warrants included in the units sold in the offering). This option is exercisable at \$10.00 per unit commencing on the later of the consummation of a business combination and one year from the date of this prospectus and expiring five years from the date of this prospectus. The option and the 750,000 units, the 750,000 shares of common stock and the 750,000 warrants underlying such units, and the 750,000 shares of common stock underlying such warrants, have been deemed compensation by the National Association of Securities Dealers ("NASD") and are therefore subject to a 180-day lock-up pursuant to Rule 2710(g)(1) of the NASD Conduct Rules. Additionally, the option may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or hypothecated for a one-year period (including the foregoing 180-day period) following the date of this prospectus. However, the option may be transferred to any underwriter and selected dealer participating in the offering and their bona fide officers or partners.

The Company has engaged Broadband Capital Management LLC to act as the representative of the underwriters, on a non-exclusive basis, as our agent for the solicitation of the exercise of the warrants. To the extent not inconsistent with the guidelines of the NASD and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company have agreed to pay the representative for bona fide services rendered a commission equal to 5% of the exercise price for each warrant exercised after June 29, 2006 if the exercise was solicited by the underwriters. In addition to soliciting, either orally or in writing, the exercise of the warrants, the representative's services may also include disseminating information, either orally or in writing, to warrant holders about us or the market for our securities, and assisting in the processing of the exercise of the warrants. No compensation will be paid to the representative upon the exercise of the warrants if:

- the market price of the underlying shares of common stock is lower than the exercise price;
- the holder of the warrants has not confirmed in writing that the underwriters solicited the exercise:
- warrants are held in a discretionary account;
- the warrants are exercised in an unsolicited transaction; or
- the arrangement to pay the commission is not disclosed in the prospectus provided to warrant holders at the time of exercise.

4. Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock with such designations, voting and other rights and preferences, as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

F-11

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. These forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "should," "could," "would," "exp "plan," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "continue," or the negative of such terms or other similar expressions. Factors might cause or contribute to such a discrepancy include, but are not limited to, those described in our other Securities and Exchange Commission filings. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Financial Statements and related Notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.

We were formed on January 6, 2005, to serve as a vehicle to effect a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition or other similar business combination with an operating business that provides services. Our initial business combination must be with a target business or businesses whose fair market value is at least equal to 80% of net assets at the time of such acquisition. We intend to utilize cash derived from the proceeds of our recently completed public offering, our capital stock, debt or a combination of cash, capital stock and debt, in effecting a business combination.

For the three months ended September 30, 2005, we had net income of approximately \$560,770, derived from interest income less operating expenses.

For the period from January 6, 2005 (inception) through September 30, 2005, we had net income of approximately \$558,701, derived from interest income less operating expenses.

On July 6, 2005, we consummated our initial public offering of 15,000,000 units. On July 7, 2005, we consummated the closing of an additional 2,250,000 units that were subject to the underwriters' over-allotment option. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one redeemable common stock purchase warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase from us one share of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00. Our common stock and warrants started trading separately as of July 28, 2005.

Our net proceeds from the sale of our units, after deducting certain offering expenses of approximately \$1,881,800, including \$1,200,000 evidencing the underwriters' non-accountable expense allowance of 1% of the gross proceeds (excluding the proceeds from the underwriters' over-allotment), and underwriting discounts of approximately \$8,280,000, were approximately \$127,838,200 — . Of this amount, \$126,720,000 is being held in trust and the remaining \$1,118,200 is being held outside of the trust. The remaining proceeds are available to be used by us to provide for business, legal and accounting due diligence on prospective acquisitions and continuing general and administrative expenses. We will use substantially all of the net proceeds of this offering to acquire a target business, including identifying and evaluating prospective acquisition candidates, selecting the target business, and structuring, negotiating and consummating the business combination. To the extent that our capital stock is used in whole or in part as consideration to effect a business combination, the proceeds held in the trust fund as well as any other net proceeds not expended will be used to finance the operations of the target business. We believe we will have sufficient available funds outside of the trust fund to operate through July 6, 2007, assuming that a business combination is not consummated during that time. From July 6, 2005 through July 6, 2007, we anticipate approximately \$180,000 of expenses for legal, accounting and other expenses attendant to the due diligence investigations, structuring and negotiating of a business combination, an aggregate of \$180,000 for the administrative fees payable to SB Management Corp. and Mercantile Companies, Inc. (a total of \$7,500 per month for two years), \$100,000 for expenses for the due diligence and investigation of a target business, \$50,000 of expenses in legal and accounting fees relating to our SEC reporting obligations and \$608,2000 for general working capital that will be used for miscellaneous expenses and reserves, including approximately \$200,000 for director and officer liability insurance

premiums. We do not

2

Table of Contents

believe we will need to raise additional funds in order to meet the expenditures required for operating our business. However, we may need to raise additional funds through a private offering of debt or equity securities if such funds are required to consummate a business combination that is presented to us. We would only consummate such a financing simultaneously with the consummation of a business combination.

Commencing on July 6, 2005 and ending upon the acquisition of a target business, we began incurring a fee of \$4,875 per month for office space and certain other additional services from SB Management Corp., an affiliate of Steven R. Berrard, our chairman of the board and chief executive officer, and a fee of \$2,625 per month for general and administrative services including secretarial support from Mercantile Companies, Inc., an affiliate of I. Steven Edelson, our vice chairman and vice president, and Nathaniel Kramer, one of our directors. In addition, in January, March and June 2005, Messrs. Berrard, Edelson, Kramer and Aucamp loaned us an aggregate of \$160,000 to us for payment on our behalf of offering expenses. These loans were repaid following our initial public offering from the proceeds of the offering.

Since our initial public offering, we have been actively engaged in sourcing a suitable business combination candidate. We have met with target companies, service professionals and other intermediaries to discuss with them our company, the background of our management and our combination preferences. In the course of these discussions, we have also spent time explaining the capital structure of the initial public offering, the combination approval process, and the timeline under which we are operating before the proceeds of the offering are returned to investors.

Consistent with the disclosures in our prospectus, we have focused our search on companies in Business Services, Healthcare Services, and Consumer Services. Of these categories, Business Services and Healthcare Services have represented the majority of the targets we are exploring, with more limited communication with Consumer Service companies. Overall, we would gauge the environment for target companies to be competitive and we believe that private equity firms and strategic buyers represent our biggest competition. Our management believes that many of the fundamental drivers of alternative investment vehicles like our company are becoming more accepted by investors and potential business combination targets; these include a difficult IPO environment, a cash-rich investment community looking for differentiated opportunities for incremental yield, and business owners seeking new ways to maximize their shareholder value while remaining invested in the business. However, there can be no assurance that we will find a suitable business combination in the allotted time.

Restatement of previously issued financial statements

In August, 2006, the Company concluded that it was necessary to restate its financial results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 and for the interim periods ended September 30, 2005 to reflect additional non-operating gains and losses related to the classification of and accounting for: (1) the warrants to purchase common stock associated with the units sold at the initial public offering of the Company and (2) warrants to purchase common stock embedded in a option to purchase units consisting of one share and one warrant to purchase one additional share, issued to Broadband Capital in connection with the initial public offering. The Company had previously classified the value of these warrants to purchase common stock, when applicable, as equity. After further review, the Company has determined that these instruments should have been classified as derivative liabilities and therefore, the fair value of each instrument must be recorded as a derivative liability on the Company's balance sheet. Changes in the fair values

of these instruments will result in adjustments to the amount of the recorded derivative liabilities and the corresponding gain or loss will be recorded in the Company's statement of operations. At the date of the conversion of each respective instrument or portion thereof (or exercise of the options or warrants or portion thereof, as the case may be), the corresponding derivative liability will be reclassified as equity.

3

Table of Contents

The accompanying financial statements for the three months ended and the period from inception to September 30, 2005 have been restated to effect the changes described above. The impact of the adjustments related to the classification of and accounting for the warrants for the period from inception to September 30, 2005 and for the three months ended September 30, 2005 are summarized below:

Statement of Operations

For the Period January 6, 2005 (inception) to September 30, 2005

	Previously		
	Reported	Adjustment	As Restated
Interest income	\$ 614,883	\$ —	\$ 614,883
Gain from derivative liabilities		18,408	18,408
Formation and operating cost	54,917		54,917
Interest expense	1,265		1,265
Net income (loss)	\$ 558,701	\$ (18,408)	\$ 557,109
Basic earnings (loss) per share	\$ 0.06	\$ —	\$ 0.06
Diluted earnings (loss) per share	\$ 0.06	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.05
Basic weighted average shares outstanding	9,883,134		9,883,134
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	9,883,134	692,218	10,575,352

For the three months ended September 30, 3005

	As	Previously	•	,		
	F	Reported	Ac	ljustment	As	Restated
Interest income	\$	614,883	\$	_	\$	614,883
Gain from derivative liabilities				18,408		18,408
Formation and operating cost		53,951				53,951
Net income	\$	579,178	\$	(18,408)	\$	579,178
Basic earnings per share	\$	0.03	\$	_	\$	0.03
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.03	\$	_	\$	0.03
Basic weighted average shares outstanding	2	0,038,043		_	2	9,038,043
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	2	0,038,043	2	,249,216	2	2,287,259

4

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet Impact

The following table sets forth the effects of the restatement adjustments on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2005:

	September 30, 2005	September 30, 2005
	As Previously	
	Reported	Adjustment (As Restated)
ASSETS		
Current assets		
Cash	\$ 1,113,757	\$ -\$ 1,113,757
Cash held in trust	127,334,883	127,334,883
Total current assets	\$128,535,506	\$ —\$128,535,506
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accrued expenses	\$ 109,325	\$ —\$ 109,325
Derivative liabilities		16,093,315 16,093,315
Total current liabilities	109,325	16,093,315 16,202,640
Common stock, subject to possible redemption, 3,448,275		
shares at redemption value	25,241,373	25,241,373
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT		
Preferred stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 1,000,000,		
none issued		
Common stock, \$.001 par value, authorized 70,000,000		
shares; issued and outstanding 21,000,000 shares (which		
includes the 3,448,275 shares subject to possible		
redemption)	21,000	21,000
Additional paid in capital	102,605,107	(16,111,723) 86,493,384
Equity accumulated during the development stage	558,701	18,408 577,109
Total stockholders' equity	103,184,808	(16,093,315) 87,091,493
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$128,535,506	\$ —\$128,535,506

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risk is the sensitivity of income to changes in interest rates, foreign exchanges, commodity prices, equity prices, and other market-driven rates or prices. We are not presently engaged in and, if a suitable business target is not identified by us prior to the prescribed liquidation date of the trust fund, we may not engage in, any substantive commercial business. Accordingly, we are not and, until such time as we consummate a business combination, we will not be, exposed to risks associated with foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices or other market-driven rates or prices. The net proceeds of our initial public offering held in the trust fund have been invested only in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 promulgated under the Investment Company Act of 1940. Given our limited risk in our exposure to money market funds, we do not view the interest rate risk to be significant.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Our management carried out an evaluation, with the participation of our chief executive officer (principal executive, financial, and accounting officer), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2005. Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

5

Table of Contents

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) under the Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2005, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

There are no material legal proceedings pending against us.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

On July 6, 2005, we consummated our initial public offering of 15,000,000 units. On July 7, 2005, we consummated the closing of an additional 2,250,000 units that were subject to the underwriters' over-allotment option. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one redeemable common stock purchase warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase from us one share of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00. The units were sold at an offering price of \$8.00 per unit, generating total gross proceeds of \$138,000,000. Broadband Capital Management LLC acted as lead underwriter. The securities sold in the offering were registered under the Securities Act of 1933 on a registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-122812). The Securities and Exchange Commission declared the registration statement effective on June 29, 2005.

We paid a total of \$8,280,000 in underwriting discounts and commissions, and approximately \$1,881,800 has been paid for costs and expenses related to the offering.

After deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and the offering expenses, the total net proceeds to us from the offering were approximately \$127,838,200, of which \$126,720,000 was deposited into a trust fund (or \$7.35 per unit sold in the offering) and the remaining proceeds are available to be used to provide for business, legal and accounting due diligence on prospective business combinations and continuing general and administrative expenses.

For a description of the use of the proceeds generated in our initial public offering, see Part I, Item 2 of this Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

Not applicable.

Item 6. Exhibits.

- 31.1 Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
- 31.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
- 32.1 Section 906 Certification

6

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Date: August 2, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SERVICES ACQUISITION CORP. INTERNATIONAL

By: /s/ Steven R. Berrard

Steven R. Berrard

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer,

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)